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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

The Trustees (who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act) present their annual
report together with the audited financial statements and Auditors' report of Loxford School Trust Limited (the
Trust) for the year ended 31 August 2015. The Trustees confirm that the Annual report and financial statements
of the Trust comply with the current statutory requirements, the requirements of the Trust's governing document
and the provisions of the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) "Accounting and Reporting by
Charities" issued in March 2005. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report and a
directors' report under company law. '

The Loxford School Trust began as a singular academy within a Trust in December 2013. In June 2014 the
Trust acquired Aldborough Primary School. Following on from this, on 1st September 2014 the Trust acquired
The Warren School followed by Tabor Academy from April 1st 2015. All of these schools financial information
appears in this statement for the terms relating to academic/financial year 2014-15 that each schoo! has been a
part of the Trust. This represents a full years accounting for all schools besides Tabor whose financial
information included runs from 1st April 2015 to 31st August 2015.

The Trust services children aged 3 to 19 serving a catchment area in the London Borough of Redbridge,
Barking and Dagenham and Essex. It has a pupil capacity of 5,920 across the four sites included in this report
and had a roll of 5,130 in the school census as at October 2015. Both Primary schools are below capacity due
to their primary elements growing currently by one year group per academic year.

Structure, governance and management
a. CONSTITUTION

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum
and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.

The Trustees of Loxford Academy Trust Limited are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company is known as Loxford Academy Trust, Companies House
number 8743560.

Details of the Trustees who served during the period are included in the Reference and Administrative Details
on Page 1.

b. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable comApany undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

c. METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

The original four Trustees of the Company were four members of the pre-conversion Governing Body, and were
chosen for their previous contribution as leaders of Governance and their specific skill-sets. As well as their
collective commitment to Loxford School of Science and Technology their backgrounds include accountancy,
training in commerce, education and a close association to the local community.

The articles permit Trustees to recruit and appoint further Trustees to the board. The Trust has determined that
this would be as a result of a skills analysis of the Board, seeking to ensure that the skills currently available to
the board remain or are enhanced. An annual self-review of the Trustees effectiveness will, in the first instance,
determine the Boards efficacy.
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

d. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

In line with the practice of the Governing Body from which the Trust Board was formed, written policies to
express the distinct role and responsibilities of the Trustees, Directors and Local Governors together with a
buddying/mentor partnership offered to support new recruits, based upon their skill set they bring, are likely to
be offered. These will be, in effect, an explanation of the Articles of Association agreed under the funding
agreement for the Trust with the EFA.

A Governors and Directors onduction and training pack and programme is in place.
e. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The organisational structure is:

. A Board of Members

. A Board of Directors

. School's Local Governing Bodies

Members:

. Responsible for holding an AGM

. The Directors Board is responsible for Higher Level Officer Appointments within the Trust including the
CEO and the DOFO

. The CEOQ is the Accounting Officer.
. Day to day running of the Trust is delegated to the CEO who further delegates to the DOFO. They are
accountable to the Trust and to the Directors Board.

Directors:

. Are responsible for Financial Decisions within the Trust, including agreeing and monitoring the Budgets
for the individual schools.

. Directors, the Board of which includes a representative from the Local Governing Bodies, are responsible
for the Performance Management of the Higher Level Officers within the Trust.

. In addition to the Local Governing Bodies, the main standing sub-commitiee of the Board of Directors is

the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee will receive and consider the reports of both the Trusts
Internal and External Auditors and make recommendations to the Board of Directors.

Local Governing Bodies:

. Are primarily responsible for Teaching and Achievement in their respective schools. They report and
seek the support for local issues to the Board of Directors via the minutes of their meetings. LGB’s can
escalate issues or challenges to the Board of Directors for resolution.

. Local Governing Bodies delegate the day-to-day running of their schools to the Head teacher. Head
teachers are accountable to both their Local Governing Bodies, the CEO and the Board of Directors.

f. CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS

Connected school partnerships;

. Schools Direct Partnership with IOE and Middlesex University

. British Council
. Jack Petchy
. London Borough of Redbridge and Vision (Partner in Leisure Centre Build, Loxford)

. Sport England (Part Funder of Leisure Centre Build, Loxford)

The Trust has made no payments to connected parties this financial period.
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Objectives and Activities
a. OBJECTS AND AIMS

Loxford School Trust has grown significantly in the last year The Trust itself has taken on two further Secondary
School Sites with plans to take on a further site in the coming academic year.

The Trust believes in setting the highest levels of academic targets and reaching these. The A* - C levels have
increased this year as have the A level accomplishments and the KS1 area performed above the government
floor targets against the most challenging circumstances. The EYFS levels exemplify again the school’s desire
to set high standards for all the students that attend. This practice of excellence will set the standard for the
other schools that join the Trust.

This year the Trust will focus on Literacy. It is based on our understanding that although we may plant the
saplings and we may not see where they finally mature into trees, it is our job at every stage to nourish them so
that they have every opportunity to reach for the skies. We must expect our children to aim for the stars. ltis
our responsibility to help them reach them, ensuring that they attain the highest ground.

It is the primary responsibility of all teachers and staff within the Trust to challenge children and engage them
intellectually, emotionally and socially.

The Development Plan is based on ensuring legacy and the children, who they become and what they attain, is
our legacy. Only by working as a team can we achieve our best.

Areas with difficulties will work with areas with strengths. A transparent system of departments collaborating will
be a key element leading to school improvement and small, effective working parties will drive progress.
Together, as a family, the school will meet the challenges head-on to reap the rewards, improved outcomes for
all students.

It is imperative that a culture of attributing blame is supplanted by individual professionals accepting personal
accountability for their students’ outcomes. Together this can be realised. We are all stewards of learning and
no individual ego should steer us away from our path. The true leader in any department develops it to a better
place than where it started. The importance and the power of ideas within the concept of humanity will
maximise our results.

Our social footprint is the impact our teaching makes on the lives of our children.
"We must leave the jersey in a better place"

Loxford Trust will continue to work with the community and develop the excellent work of the newly established
PTFA.

The impact of Governors will also increase through focused visits and other collaborations, employing challenge
as a primary tool in supporting the school.

Each year, as we have grown, we have raised our expectations of ourselves. The successes we have achieved
are attributable to our talented and highly dedicated support staff, teachers, leaders and governors. Alongside
this we are grateful for the extensive support and commitment of our students and their parents and carers.
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Improvements in staff development.

We are now a Teaching School and a number of staff are accredited at LP and LSP. It is our responsibility to
create and develop outstanding teachers. A significant number of colleagues gained Qualified Teacher Status
in the last year and the quality of the educational experience of our students is constantly improving. The
School is fully staffed with subject specialists, including many well-qualified teachers, experts in their field. A
large number of Teach First, Schools Direct and NQTs start with us this year. The Senior Leadership team will
act as challenge partners in their role as Senior Line Managers.

Appraisal will remain a key aspect of staff development allowing staff to develop their personal portfolios, clearly
identifying training needs which leads to INSET benefiting the individual and the school. '

The primary responsibility of the Trust and all the departments is to put in place learning that engages students
intellectually, socially and emotionally. The Trust has passed many significant milestones and continues to
improve. Improvement must be sustained as it contributes to the growth and good of all the stakeholders.

Areas with difficulties will work with areas of strength to improve outcomes for all students. A clear system of
departments collaborating will be a highlight of school improvement. Small working parties will be the forefront
of school improvement. Together as a family the school will meet the challenges to reap the rewards.

The Trust will continue to work with the local community and develop the excellent work of the newly established
PTFA.

The work of the Governors will also increase in the level of visits and collaboration in the Trust acting as critical
friends.

b. OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

Qutcome for Pupils

A robust system of internal moderation before each Tracking Period overseen by the Senior Line Manager so
that Teacher Assessment is accurate and reliable.

. Internal moderation by Department and Year Team is rigorous.

. Strategic and Operational Calendars clearly highlight the importance of moderation.

. All Subject Leaders access examination reports, act on the outcomes and have a clear programme on
improvement.

Implement a training programme for SLT and middle leaders on the analysis of groups and subject levels.

. The DIAL Group has a structured plan that meets the needs of NQTs, Teach First and Schools Direct.
. Clear intervention plans are put into place for NQTs to support them in lessons.

. All teachers will observe outstanding teaching at least once a term to improve their own practice.

. Curiosity of mind is developed by all teachers in all lessons.

Challenging targets are set for all students in all Year Groups and in all subjects.

Key Stage 1 — Children make 6 points of progress per year

Key Stage 2 — Children make 6 points of progress per year

Key Stage 3 — Children make 2 sub-levels of progress per year group.

Key Stage 4 — Children meet their KS5 potential aspiring grades and all departments meet their high level
ALPs Grading.
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Provide clear guidelines to students via assemblies and give parents clear information via the school website in
all year groups.

Calendared internal moderation in each department is completed to ensure that student outcomes
exceed standards.

All targets for all students are set and monitored by the Achievement Team Leaders and interventions are
put into place.

Students are aware of their targets in each subject and these are clearly visible in student diaries.
Student stickers are reviewed half-termly and are visible on student’s work.

Assessments are purposeful, test children’s capacity and are future-proof in line with real examination
criteria.

Achieve 70% and above A* - C in English and Maths in 2016.

Middle Leaders plan, co-ordinate and deliver a documented programme for all underachieving students.
The intervention programme is evaluated and where it is not working changes made especially with a
focus on vulnerable students.

Senior Line Managers hold quality assurance meetings against data dumps with Department and Year Leaders.

After a tracking period there is a rigorous, thorough and prompt analysis and actions by all CTLs and
ATLs resulting in better student performance.

The CTLs of English and Maths hold intervention classes in tutor time which is evidenced and
documented.

Senior Leaders monitor student data in their Senior Line Management areas and ask for a clear strategy
plan after every tracking period to maintain student progress.

Senior Leaders hold half-termly raising achievement meetings with Middle Leaders to check validity of
results and progress to final examination outcomes.

Students in IEUs are given work appropriate to their needs and this is marked in accordance with the
school policy.

All examination criteria is followed including the.legal responsibilities.

All practical/written work is the individuals’ own and is authenticated as such.

Middle Leaders are responsible for the secure storage of examination materials i.e. controlled
assessments.

Controlled assessments follow the rigor and rules of the examination boards.

To provide timely and effective interventions on a half-termly basis to address underachievement in subjects.

Tracking is completed on time with interventions in place within a week of the data dump by Middle
Leaders.

Achievement Team Leaders collaboratively work with CTLs, 2ic to raise standards use Learning Walks
as additional information to ensure students are making progress and provide clear analysis of this to the
Headteacher.

Curriculum Leaders accept responsibilities for their areas and Quality assure the work on a half-termly
basis for all examination subjects, particularly in practical areas.

Examination boards are reviewed to meet any changes in students’ needs.
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

The new Marking Policy‘is embedded in all student books with clear target setting by teachers resulting in
improved outcomes for all individuals.

. All Middle Leaders will review the Marking Policy across the school and ensure that all staff are given
clear targets for student progress.

. Response marking is at the core of every subject area.

. Practical subjects show a clear timeline for completion of controiled assessments.

. Teachers are responsible for student targets on a half-termly tracking basis which is clearly evidenced in
student books.

. Practical subjects are able to provide evidence of students’ progress i.e. of photographs, recordings, etc.

. Assessment stickers on students exercise books with clear targets for improvement.

Train students in target setting and target understanding so that they can use this to improve in all areas
(targets should be evident in all diaries).

. Teachers ensure that students know their targets — reinforced by tutors. .

. Curriculum Leaders ensure that those targets maximise potential and that book checking provides clear
evidence of progress.

. Teachers target under-performing students every week.

. Line Management meetings focus on the progress of students and raising attainment.

. Headteacher meets with the CTLs of English, Maths and Science on a half-termly basis.

Learning Walks and Work Scrutinies completed by Middle Leaders are fed back to Senior Line Managers and
show that achievement is improving.

. All staff plan lessons in line with examination specifications.
. All staff follow and plan lessons in line with Schemes of Work.
. Classroom environments are changed on a half-termly basis and celebrating student work is the focus

within these rooms.

Formal examinations take place in all year groups to prepare for new linear examinations.

. All departments have clear assessments that are routinely monitored by the Curriculum Leader to track
student progress.

. Challenge meetings are held by the subject leaders after every data uplift.

. The SENCO ensures that SEND students’ provision meets their needs and teachers are acting upon the
Student Statement Summaries.

. Literacy marking is evident in all subjects and in all years.

Half-termly meetings are held with Heads of Maths and English and termly meetings with subject leaders and
Senior Line Managers with the Headteacher.

. All Subject Leaders ensure that their examination subjects are on track and are above national outcomes

and student SIMs residuals.
. Subject Leaders are held to account for robust literacy strategies that are incorporated into their Schemes
of Work. ‘
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Professional Development

Subject knowledge is tested through regular observations as is planning of lessons.

. All students’ books are marked in accordance with the school’'s Marking Policy with literacy being the key
focus.

. Staff use assessment data to plan appropriate lessons.

. Middle Leaders complete planning checks to ensure that students are making progress.

.. Teachers improve their subject knowledge and specification knowledge.

Staff make regular use of assessment data which is tracked through their marking of students’ work.

. All departments have clear Homework Policies which are evidenced on the school’s website and record
of homework in student planners.

. Classrooms and corridors promote learning in subject areas and promote ethos of the subject.

. Excellent student work is shared and promoted by students.

Student Voice forms a part of all Middle Leaders scrutiny of assessment déta, work scrutinies to check high
levels of student progress.

. Lessons become fun and engaging with students developing independent learning skills and students
encouraged to lead in lessons.

. Curriculum and Year Leaders in accordance with their Strategic Calendars hold Student Voice Surveys to
meet children’s needs.

. Curriculum Leaders will meet with all staff in their areas based on the tracklng data that is submitted
expecting clear expectations for progress.

. Achievement data is used for all appraisal observations.

All work is moderated through Departmental Meetings to ensure that children are progressing in an accelerated
level evidence through Quality Assurance Meeting with Senior Line Manager and Middle Leaders.

. A robust quality assurance programme by the CTL to monitor the setting, marking and impact of
homework.

Learning Walks by Year Leaders are fed to Senior Team Meetings with clear interventions in place where
teaching is less than Good.

. Senior Leaders complete joint lesson observations.

. The Headteacher creates a central database of strengths and areas for development of teachers,
curriculum areas and whole school.

. Working parties are established in twilight and directed time sessions to share good practice and a
coaching model is put in place for teachers requiring improvement.

. Teaching observations show that 100% of lessons are Good to Outstanding and if below this the

Curriculum Leader develops a support plan for the individual member of staff.

Page 10



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Students are given frequent opportunities to work individually in all lessons and this is evident in Learning Walks
and Work Scrutinies.

. Planners are on all desks in‘all lessons.

. Seating plans are in place in every subject and in every classroom and are monitored by Curriculum
Leaders and ATLs.

. Presentation of books is exemplar with teachers ensuring that children use all the pages and complete all
the work.

. Staff and students are encouraged to use VLEs, especially Google Apps for Education enabling

collaborative and individual learning beyond lesson time.

Students understand their own progress and marking allows them to address their weaknesses.

. Teachers plan lessons in accordance with student needs where textbooks are not used as major parts of
the lesson.

. Textbooks should not be used instead of teaching.

. Teachers make children aware of targets on a half-termly basis.

Teaching effectively supports most able and less able students to make effective progress in line with all other
students.

. Teachers adapt lessons to meet the need of learners and to address any misconceptions.
. Schemes of Work are reviewed and adapted.
. Teaching groups are changed to meet the needs of learners and teachers’ strengths.

All teachers will complete at least one peer observation per term of outstanding practice which will form part of
their CPD and be evidenced through their Appraisal.

. Teachers ensure that moral and social values are part of their classroom practice.

. Teachers mark books in accordance with the school and department policy.

. Curriculum Leaders monitor the teaching and learning in their areas to ensure students are being taught
consistently.

Middle Leaders ensure that all teaching is between Good and Qutstanding in all subject areas and this is quality
assured by the Senior Line Managers on a half-termly basis.

. Lead Practitioners are deployed to support vulnerable teachers and children.

. The impact of Lead Practitioners is evidenced by the improvement in standards and the quality of
teaching.

. The Strategic and Operational Calendars are embedded and checked across the school year.

. The Teaching School is established with regular CPD opportunities both internal and external.

. Outstanding teaching results in displays which celebrate the achievement of our students.

Review all Schemes of Learning for all year Groups to meet the demands of the new linear examinations.

. All Schemes of Work are completed as new courses begin over the next three years.

. CPD is provided to meet the needs of high ability and low ability performers.

. Staff actively pursue training on new linear examinations which is then evidenced to Senior Line
Managers in Schemes of Work.

. Vigorous testing of new admissions with students placed in appropriate levels and classes.

. The schools banding system of 1*, 1, 2 and 3 is evident in all teachers preparation and planning

throughout the secondary school.
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Lesson are planned where teachers are active and are fully engaged with all students (no teachers seated
behind desks).

Staff will regularly engage with improved practices and developing themselves to improve as
practitioners.

All classrooms will show active learning.

Teachers will take an active role in and outside the classroom using positive language to improve student
outcomes.

Teachers encourage student learning via positive language that is used within lessons and in student books.
Children are valued.

Teachers will use positive language to students at all times using the positive praise system effectively.
Subjects will ensure that a high level of technical language is used to ensure that students can access the
highest subject knowledge.

Evidence of key words and subject jargon is displayed in classrooms.

Teachers use of formal individual, specific, measurable and subject specific language is evident across
every subject area, in marking and in classrooms.

Response marking is positive and legible so that students can access and move forward to improve.
Students see examples of excellent practise — shared.

Teachers use judiciously the SIMs Achievement facility to inform all Middle and Senior Leaders.

Development, Behaviour and Welfare

Assemblies establish a strong year ethos of achievement, success and excellent behaviours.

All assemblies will be planned by Achievement team Leaders with evaluations on effectiveness by Senior
Leaders.

Students will have their pledges reviewed by Year Care Team members on a weekly basis.

All low level and disruptive behaviour will be dealt with swiftly by the Year Teams.

The Pastoral Support Plans will be monitored effectively so students behaviour is monitored effectively to
meet the school’s standard.

The SMSC programme is audited in all lessons to ensure that British Values are all encompassing throughout
the school day.

British Values are clearly evident in a programme of SMSC established throughout the school year.
Prevent training is established for all staff and vulnerable students are identified quickly so effective
action is taken.

Good behaviour is promoted through assemblies and is monitored by the Year Team.

The assemblies rota shows the identification of celebrations which are identified and visible within the
school life.

Thought for the Week is discussed in Tutor Time.

Student behaviour outside lessons is excellent and there is pride in wearing the Loxford uniform.

The right place, the right time, doing the right thing.

Punctuality to lessons including Sixth Form is monitored and actions by Achievement Team Leaders and
Year Care Team is swift.

Uniform is worn at all times to the highest standards and Sixth Formers dress follows the school’s
business code.

Student behaviour outside school is commendable.
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LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED -
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

The Pastoral system will be a key driver in a readiness for learning in all classrooms across the school.

Students’ equipment is checked on a daily basis.

Diaries are signed by all parties on a weekly basis.

Achievement Team Leaders monitor books of all subjects to ensure that the Marking Policy is evident
and report back to Senior Line management any concerns.

Achievement Team Leaders are visible during their non-contact sessions.

Staff complete all their duties in accordance with the school policy including duties such as ‘meet and
greet’, break and after school.

All staff use the SIMs Behaviour and Achievement system daily to monitor student progress and student
behaviour.

The Year Team will plan interventions across all subjects to enable children to progress in subject areas and be
successful.

Interventions are planned to ensure that students on Pupil Premium match or exceed their expected
progress.

All data regarding SIMs from ATLs and Year Care Team will be sent to the Headteacher by Monday,
10.00am of the following week.

Exclusions are reduced by 10%.

Parental Surgery — after tracking.

Early Warning Meetings.

Year Leaders will be responsible for above 95% attendance in all Year Groups.

Friday Prayers are monitored by a Senior Line Manager to ensure that it meets school expectations.
Children with 100% attendance are recognised and celebrated in display boards throughout the school by
Year Teams.

Interventions on poor and persistent attendance are dealt with on a weekly basis by Year Leaders,
Attendance Officer and EWO.

All Year Leaders monitor SIMs on a weekly, monthly, termly and yearly basis identifying trends and acting
upon them appropriately.

SIMs behaviour and achievement letters are sent on a weekly basis only after approval by Headteacher.
All registers are taken within 10 minutes of the start of lessons by all staff.

All tutor time registers are accurate and completed before the lesson change.

Students will earn positive behaviours through the Pastoral Care System.

Children gain rewards for positive behaviours throughout the school year.

Year Teams mode! high standards of behaviour and attendance to their Year Groups.
Behaviour hotspots are identified, acted upon and reviewed.

Parents are involved in their child’s life with communication being a clear priority.

Clear care, guidance and support will be issued to all vulnerable students through SEND and the Year System.

Extra-curricular activities in all subject areas are the focus across the school and meet the needs of the
children.

Looked after children are identified and progress is monitored as well as well-being and safety.

The child protection team ensure that all vulnerable students are monitored.

The single central register is up to date, accurate and meets the statutory requirements.
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It is the responsibility of all staff to safeguard children in their practices across the school.

. All parental communications are logged on the school’s SIMs system and all paper records are filed in
accordance with the school policy.

. Parental surveys are issued and outcomes analysed for actions by the Headteacher.

. Year Teams will meet with dipping students on a regular basis ensuring that parental contact is
maintained.

. All staff are trained in safeguarding and follow robustly the school’s procedures.

. Governors monitor safeguarding procedures.

The Year Team will track all students through the schools robust assessment systems to ensure that any
student dipping strives to get good or better grades.

. Tracking is used to ensure that all children on Free School Meals (FSM) are meeting expected or above
standards.

. Poor attendance is acted upon on a weekly basis.

. No Year 12 student will be allowed out of school premises except at lunch time.

. At [east 100 parents respond to Parent Questionnaire with all areas having 75% approval rating.

The Pastoral Programme will robustly tackle the Prevent Agenda and reinforce strong British Values.

Safe-Rooming Timetables are issued by all departments within one week of each new term.
Hotspots by Year Teams are adapted on a two-weekly basis.

Assemblies are prepared in full by ATLs and given to Senior Line manager for approval.
SEND Provision Map is provided and given to Headteacher within a month.

Behaviour groups are established to modify student behaviour.

Children will now lead through the Student’s Council and the Monitoring System to enhance their own leadership
skills.

Establish a Student Council framework across the school.

Appoint students to arrange leadership roles across all Year Groups.

Give student leaders specific responsibilities to promote a positive ethos and culture.

Ensure that the Student Council is robust and key to school policy making and concerns are dealt with in
a timely manner.

Students, parents and staff have positive attitudes to attendance and a no excuses culture around the structure
of learning.

. Achievement Team Leaders organise and deliver behaviour management CPD in year team meetings.

. Year Care Teams conduct daily Learning Walks monitoring and recording student attitudes to learning
and learning levels.

. Student support plans are addressed in a timely manner from the SEND Department.
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Leadership

Because of the impact of and next steps:

Establish high quality distributed leadership at every level of the school and build a common commitment to the
vision of high standards.

. Embed the line management structure across the school resulting in clear responsibilities and
accountabilities.

. Schedule quality assurance meetings between Senior Line Manager and Department Leaders on a
monthly basis holding Leaders to account.

. Evaluate the outcomes of all meetings to demonstrate that leaders at dll levels are held to account.

. Establish high quality distributive leadership at every level, including governance, to build a common
commitment to the vision of high standards.

. Relevant links are made between teachers across the Trust.

A clear Induction Programme for new staff including staff in leadership positions is in place.

. Middle Leaders ensure that agendas have the training aspect for all their staff.

. Working Parties have clear outcomes acted upon to improve staff leadership.

. Year Teams embed data planning within their tutor times and ensure that robust intervention
programmes are developed within those times.

. CPD reflects the needs of the students resulting in improved outcomes.

Twilight sessions are planned appropriately to meet staff needs demonstrating excellence.

. Senior Leaders monitor staff performance for Appraisals with interim reviews.
. Leaders ensure that target student groups make and exceed progress above national expectations.
. Working groups constantly challenge our practice to ensure we do not stand still.

All Leaders follow their Strategic and Operational Calendars which ultimately holds all teachers accountable for
student outcomes and provision.

. All Middle Leaders provide evidence of their Learning Walks, Work Checks and Moderation.

. Learning Walks are evidenced with clear interventions where student progress is at risk — Senior Leaders
will act quickly to ensure that progress is made.

. All Middle Leaders have progress targets for the end of year and demonstrate through data that children
are meeting or exceeding expected progress.

. All staff have the responsibility to ensure they familiarise themselves with all school policies.

Leaders ensure that staff plan appropriately for student needs at all Key Stages.

. Schemes of Work are revised in line with examination outcomes and expectations.

. Middle Leaders evidence that all staff are teaching according to the Schemes of Work.

. Middle Leaders can evidence that homework is set in line with school and department policy.

. Middle Leaders revise the timetable and plan interventions at each tracking period to ensure examination
outcomes.

Page 15



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Team Meetings have agendas which relate to teaching and learning, moderation and joint planning to improve
outcomes for students.

Moderation of all student work is clearly in every agenda at curriculum level.

Year Team Meetings have a clear focus on achievement with data shared at interventions completed in
EFjr:cérI;/Ilr;:rek‘ing Policy is evident on a monthly basis by all Middle Leaders. This will be through QA

¥ﬁ: tl(;‘?c?vsérning Body to regularly monitor progress agéinst the strategic plan and hold Leaders to
g?::f Ir\]/:inutes keep all relevant parties informed and encourage transparency.

All Staft Meetings encourage challenge, allowing all staff to have a voice improving outcomes.

All meeting encourage members to actively take part with Minutes showing clear action points which are
then acted upon.

All agendas should have a clear leadership focus that provide all staff the opportunity to develop as
leaders.

All Middle Leaders keep files of their agendas and minutes.

All minutes are accurate.

Governors’ minutes reflect appropriate challenge of the school’s leadership.

Short, middle and long term plans are monitored by Senior Leaders of their Middle Leaders.

Senior Leaders meet regularly with Middle Leaders to ensure that any gaps in student progress are filled.
The Strategic and Operational Calendars are followed, yet adapted to student needs for best student
outcomes.

Interventions are adapted according to student needs by Middle Leaders.

All plans have a student impact.

Governing Body holds to account Headteacher and monitoring the progress against the strategic plan.

Curriculum Leaders take responsibility for examination outcomes and act upon moderation advice.
Curriculum Leaders ensure that all staff have subject specifications and follow examining bodies advice.
Headteacher meets with all Curriculum Leaders setting clear progress targets in all subjects.
Headteacher feeds back all examination results and information to the Governing Body and is held
responsible for performance.

Headteacher reports all examination results and impact of improvement strategies to the Governing Body
and is held accountable for performance.

All Middle Leaders create teams where staff are trained to become leaders by leading on agenda items.

All Year and Curriculum Teams work together in a state of harmony.

All Leaders in the school promote the school's culture, ethos and expectations in schoo! and out of
school.

Middle Leaders ensure that all staff in their area are confident in the use of assessment data to inform
their planning and marking. '

All departments have clear handbooks at A Level and GCSE which are led by the Curriculum Leaders.
All departments have clear and informative student guides for KS5 students.

The options process meets the needs of the new Progress 8 Measure.

The staffing and leadership structure meets the needs of the new revised curriculum.
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All Leaders can produce evidence of moderation of marking across all Key Stages following the schools
Marking Policy.

. All Schemes of Work meet the new examination boards standards at Key Stages 2, 4 and 5.

. A new life without levels is embedded by 2016 which is clearly understood and ensures that students
make progress.

. Robust succession planning and talent management strategies are in place.

. SEND audit to be completed with clear pathways and interventions for students who are dipping.

. Provide additional training to staff to include best practice in supporting SEND /EAL students in the
classroom.

. Senior Leaders ensure that all data is available for staff to access in school systems.

Interventions are planned after moderation and assessment data by all Middle Leaders.

. Middle Leaders give accurate judgements of currently teaching provision through paired observation,
analysis of data and work checks in the first half-term for all staff.

. Middle Leaders identify any teacher who is falling below the teaching standards and put in place a
support plan so that children may progress.

. Senior Leaders are visible throughout the school day to support their subject areas and the school's
ethos.

. The Year Care Team and ATLs use their time productively including tutor time to ensure that children
gain adequate provision.

. Teachers use their non-contact periods to mark and teach in lessons.

. Middle Leaders ensure that PPA is used appropriately.

. All Middle Leaders who are not tutors will provide evidence of how they use the tutor time to raise student
progress.

Appraisal is used thoughtfully and staff challenge themselves to ensure students success.
Relaunch Appraisal and Pay Policy to staff providing refresher training on its implementation.

. Ensure all objectives are linked to teaching quality, student progress and appropriate responsibilities.

. All leaders monitor student progress data to identify teachers causing concern in the Appraisal process.
. Staff at risk of not reaching targets are effectively supported by their Leaders.

Results

Loxford School

Early Years
School’s 2015 GLD National 2014 GLD
68% 54%

Phonics Screening

Phonics is broadly in line with national averages for 2014. There is an upward trend.

School 2014 School 2015 National 2014
69% 75% 74%
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Key Stage 1

Disadvantaged KS1 pupils had an average point score equal to or above the national score for other pupils in
writing.

The proportion of disadvantaged KS1 pupils that attained at least Level 2B was equal to or above the national
figure for other pupils in reading and writing.

2015 Results 2014 Results
95% Reading Level 2 91% Reading Level 2
94% Writing Level 2 85% Writing Level 2
98% Maths Level 2 93% Maths Level 2
Reading Writing Maths
16.8 APS 16.2 APS 17.0 APS
GCSE and A Level
YEAR 11 YEAR 13
Number on
Roll Grades A* - C Grades A* | Numberon | Average Points
-G Roll Score
Sor 5 or more including S or more
more English & Maths
286 242 172 286 211 781.42
84.6% 60.13% 100%
Average Points Score for students in Year 11: 54.58
Number of A level entries: 581.5
Total QCA Points Score: 164880
Number of A* - C Grades for students in Year 13: 540
Number of A* - E Grades for students in Year 13: 639
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The Warren

GCSE and A Level

YEAR 11 YEAR 13
Number on A roms o
Roll Grades A* - C Grades A umberon | Average Points
-G Roll Score

Sor 5 or more including 5 or more
more English & Maths

217 138 109 212 61 729.55
64% 50% 98%

A Level

A*to D 100%
A*to C 75%

Vocational
D*-M81%

Aldborough

Early Years

In terms of educational attainment, our assessments of pupils on entry to Reception are well below national age

related expectations.

EYFS is below the national average for 2014.

School’s 2015 GLD

National 2014 GLD

48%

54%

Phonics Screening

Phonics is broadly in line with national averages for 2014. There is an upward trend

School 2014

School 2015

National 2014

69%

71%

74%

Page 19



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Key Stage 1
Reading Writing Maths
Sch Nat Targ Sch Nat Targ Sch Nat Targ
2014 2014 2014
1+ 95% 98% 98% 97% 98% 98%
(55 ch) (57 ch) (57 ch)
2¢c+ 91% 90% 88% 91% 86% 86% 95% 92% 88%
(53 ch) (53 ch) {55 ch)
2b+ 78% 81% 75% 74% 70% 75% 81% 80% 80%
{45 ch) (43 ch) (47 ch)
2a+ 59% 57% 40% 39% 55% 53%
(34 ch) (29 ch) (32 ch)
3+ 29% 31% 27% 22% 16% 19% 33% 24% 29%
{17 ch) (13 ch) (19 ch)

Attainment is slightly higher than the 2014 national average for Level 2+ as well as 2c+ in writing and maths.
Children attain broadly in line with national averages in reading for Level 2b+ and 3+.
In writing and maths at Level 3+, pupils are above national averages for 2014.

The school exceeded its targets at all levels, in all subjects expect in Level 2b+ writing (-1%).

c. PUBLIC BENEFIT

In setting the Loxford School Trusts objectives and planning its activities, the directors have given careful
consideration to and have complied with the Charities Act 2011 and the Charity Commission’s general guidance
on public benefit and to its supplementary public benefit guidance on advancing education.

The Loxford School Trust plays significant part in the local and wider community having secured the
sponsorship to support two further schools in the space of the last year. In addition to this Loxford School Trust
has strong partnership arrangements with Teach First and a long standing Beginner Teachers Partnership in
place in order to develop staff.

The Loxford School Trust has built up a reserve fund in order to invest in its vision of running a community and
school use Leisure Centre and pool facility (Loxford Site) and this is proceeding in partnership with Vision and
the London Borough of Redbridge.

The Loxford School Trust has strong and active PTA's across its primary phases and holds many well
publicised and supported fund raising events predominantly pupil led.

Loxford School Trust also offers the provision of a summer school to support transition of vulnerable and
deprived young people into secondary education.

The Loxford School Trust works with a variety of commercial enterprises in order to give the best possible work
placements, careers advice and enterprise initiatives to its pupils.

Loxford School recently became an approved Teaching School provider.
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Achievements and performance
a. REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

“TRUE LEADERS ARE STEWARDS OF THE FUTURE, THEY TAKE RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADDING TO
THE LEGACY"

“Let someone else praise your virtues”
“Exceptional success requires exceptional circumstances”

James Kerr

craracer W ...

~ ~

Language Purpose

/ N\

Sacrifices Expectation

[ \

Preparstion Presnuse

\ /

Spearheading Ritual

N 7

Responsibility Authentidty

—— Adopration q-—’

We will maximise the effectiveness of learning opportunities, technologies and our distinctive specialism in
Science, Technology and Languages in order to provide a well-ordered, reflective, enterprising and collaborative
environment in which all participants are respected and are enabled to fulfil their potential and to make a
positive contribution to the development of our culturally rich community.

1. The vision for the Trust is to develop further schools and ensure that all students within our umbrella
provide outstanding outcomes for our children is now identified into moving into academy status and
opening as “The Loxford Trust”. The Loxford School Trust will formulate into a multi academy trust
working with and sponsoring failing schools.

2. Loxford School of Science and Technology has been judged outstanding in 2013 and results in all key
stages will be substantially improved in 2015. Examination results at key stages’ 4 and 5 are significantly
higher than the national average based on the baseline data of students.
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3. The vision will only be realised by building on the success of the Trust so far to raise standards of
attainment significantly. To do so will take a number of years and require many changes, some of which
will be transformational in nature; others will be no more than minor adjustments to existing practice.

4. The Trust believes in setting the highest levels of academic targets and reaching these. The A* - C levels
have increased this year as have the A level accomplishments and the KS1 area performed above the
government floor targets against the most challenging circumstances. The EYFS levels exemplify again
the Trust's desire to set high standards for all the students that attend. This practice of excellence will set
the standard for the other schools that join the Trust.

5. The primar‘y responsibility of the Trust and all the schools is to put in place learning that engages
students intellectually, socially and emotionally.

b. GOING CONCERN

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review
a. FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Loxford School Trust's income is derived in the main from the Department for Education (DFE) via the
. Education Funding Agency (EFA) in the form of recurrent and capital grants, the use of which is restricted to
particular purposes. The grants received from the EFA and other courses during the year ended 31 August
2015 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement for financial activities.

The Academy Trust also received as element of funding for the acquisition and replacement of fixed assets
(DFC) from the EFA. In addition to this the Trust also received a payment for two capital build projects, one at
Aldborough and one at Tabor site in the financial year 14/15 which will commence in building terms in the year
15/16. Furthermore, in addition, the Loxford School Trust has entered a partnership agreement with the London
Borough of Redbridge to receive a grant to complete the design and build of the Loxford Sports Centre Facilities
in exchange for the site being operated as a community as well as a school facility. This property once
developed will remain under the ownership of the Loxford School Trust. In accordance with the charities
statement of recommended practice, “Accounting and Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2005), such grants are
shown in the statement of financial activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed
assets fund is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned
which qualify for depreciation.

Incoming resources during the year ended 31 August 2015 totalled £67.4m and were sufficient to cover
outgoing resources and provided a surplus of £40.2m before transfers and other recognised gains and losses.
This includes the transferred assets of two newly converted schools.

During the year £1.3m was transferred between the Unrestricted fund and GAG fund to the asset fund in
respect of capital projects. In addition to this, £168k of capital funding was transferred from the Capital
Reserves to the Restricted Reserves account to offset capital expenditure on cCapital items in year.

Page 22



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

The net book value of tangible fixed assets was £95.3m; movements in tangible assets are shown in note 12 to
the financial statements. The assets were exclusively for providing educational and associated support services
to pupils and the community. Please note that it is the policy of the Trust to depreciate assets under construction
at the point of project completion only. However works are capitalised annually.

The financial year ended 31 August 2015 provided for a £33,000 actuarial gain on the Loxford School Trust's
defined benefit pension schemes. During the year the Loxford School Trust inherited further pension liabilities
of £2.815m on the local government defined benefit pension schemes of the schools who joined the Trust in the
year.

During the year ended 31 August 2015 the Academy Trust continued to allow all new staff the opportunity to join
one of two pension schemes, Teachers Pensions (TPS) or Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
applicable to each school, both are defined benefit schemes. Every year, the LGPS produces actuarial reports
on behalf of the Loxford School Trust to give us an LGPS deficit figure. The LGPS currently provides for a deficit
balance of £4.631m.

b. RESERVES POLICY

Reserve levels

Summary by Academy Total Unrestricted| Restricted | Capital Reserve
Loxford 1,582,779 881,787 700,992 0
Aldborough 290,886 209,649 24,069 57,168
Warren 27,982 0 27,982 0

Tabor 19,070 0 19,070 0
Total 1,920,717 | 1,094,436 772,113 57,168

The Loxford School Trust has been building up its reserves prior to existence when Loxford School was a
maintained organisation. The purpose of building this reserve was to fund a redesign and build of the leisure
and pool facilities on behalf of the Trust. These works have now commenced. Prior to transfer Aldbrorough
Primary had little transparency on it's own reserves as an organisation. Post transfer a surplus expenditure plan
will now be developed by the Trust.

It is important that grant is spent as needed to avoid excess calls on Exchequer funding and public borrowing.
The EFA previously set limits on the amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next.
These limits have now been removed so that academy trusts have the freedom to keep money aside for when it
is needed most and to build up reserves, for example for long-term capital projects.
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The DfE expects academy trusts to use their allocated funding for the full benefit of their current pupils.
Therefore, it is important that, if the trust has a substantial surplus, they have a clear plan for how it will be used
to benefit their pupils.

Budget forecasts sent to the EFA must declare any unspent funds expected to be carried forward at the end of
the financial year. The EFA will also verify the sums of unspent funds when it checks the Trust's accounts and
highlight and report, to the relevant DfE Boards, any cases where it has serious concerns about a long-term
substantial surplus with no clear plans for use.

c. INVESTMENTS POLICY

The Trust will operate an interest bearing current account with a bank approved by the Directors Board
(NatWest) and maintain sufficient balances to ensure there are adequate liquid funds to cover all immediate and
forthcoming financial commitments, including maintaining a sufficient contingency for unexpected payments.

Monies surplus to the working requirements shall be invested in term deposits with NatWest. The Academy will
not take out any long term investments until a reliable cash flow pattern has been established, monies will only
be paid into term deposits not exceeding six months.

All investments will be recorded in sufficient detail to identify the investment and to enable the current market
value to be calculated. The information recorded will include date of purchase, cost and description of
investment. Additional procedures may be required to ensure any income receivable from the investment is
received and properly accounted for.

The Trust Board reserve the powers to:

. Give prior approval to the opening of new bank current accounts
. Amend the list of approved institutions with whom the Academy will invest (currently only NatWest)
. Give prior approval to any bank deposit with a maturity date exceeding six months

d. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In the present economic climate there are a significant number of uncertainties many of which are very
subjective in nature and difficult to quantify with any reasonable assurance.

The Loxford School Trust have compiled a risk register and monitor this termly throughout the academic year
The following key area was identified during the annual risk review:

. Sustainable Levels of Public Funding

The Loxford Academy Trust has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the EFA. The
Academy Trust's publicly funded revenue income accounts for 95% of its total revenue income and this level of

reliance is expected to continue if not increase.

There is little reassurance that government policy and funding levels will continue at existing levels or on a
consistent basis of allocation.
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The public funding risk is being managed in the following ways:

. Loxford Academy Trust seeks to be the trust of choice for the local and wider community by delivering
high quality and student centred educational and training opportunities and hence maximising student
intake numbers;

. To develop new and varied income streams to supplement fluctuations in public funding; and

. To manage successful relationships with key stakeholders within the DfE and EFA.

The Trust have recently implemented an audit committee and a fully compiled risk register which will be
reviewed and reassessed termly moving forward.

Plans for future periods
a. FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Our school community thrives on the Loxford principal values. The Loxford School values run through all that
we do and the way that we work, and behave every day. Transforming lives is an inspiring goal. It is a goal
based on the aim of ensuring that every young person has access to the best possible standards of education.
We believe that much of our work is about individuals and about character we help each individual student to
achieve the best possible results for themselves. Students experience a wide variety of activities and are
introduced to new influences and initiatives that give them the opportunity to explore and to shine as individuals.

We are proud of the team that we have built at Loxford Academy Trust. Our team work hard and show
commitment to supporting and encouraging all of our students. Working towards our shared goals means that
we believe it important to work closely with our local community and to share in supporting young people in and
out of school.

Loxford Academy Trust has ambitions to support even more young people and communities by bringing other
schools into the Loxford School Trust family and by establishing and sponsoring new academies.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this Trustees' report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as that Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's
auditors are unaware, and _ ’

. that Trustee has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of that
information.

This report, incorporating the Strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Trustees, as the company
directors, on q,q,\q',\g and signed on the board's behalf by:

De L 2P >
MrD A Low
Vice Chair of Trustees
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SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Loxford School Trust Limited has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Loxford School Trust Limited and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting
to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the

Trustees' responsibilities statement. The board of Trustees has formally met 8 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr P W Ballard 3 3
Mr M Mclintyre 3 3
MrD A Low 3 3
Mr D F Hubbard 3 3
Mrs A Johnson 3 3

The first full year of operations for the Loxford Academy Trust resulted in significant restructuring of the
governance framework and the establishment and change of all boards, committees and bodies to align to our
Articles of Association.

The Finance and General Purposes Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. Its purpose is to
ensure all assets and resources of the Loxford Academy Trust are properly safeguarded, managed and used
and that funds are spent effectively and efficiently in the course of its activities.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible

Mr P W Ballard
Mr M Mclintyre
Mr D A Low

Mr D F Hubbard
Mrs A johnson
Mr P Bukhari

M Patel

O =+ — 4 1 2
—_ e ok

The audit committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. Its purpose is to help promote the highest
standards of propriety in the use of public funds and encourage proper accountability for the use of those funds.

To review the effectiveness of the Loxford Academy Trust's internal control system to ensure that the aims,
objectives and key performance targets of the organisation are achieved in the most economic, effective and
environmentally sensitive manner.
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Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: N
Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr D F Hubbard 1 1

Mr M Mcintyre 1 1

Mrs A Johnson 1 1

Miss A Loveng 1 1

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved
value for money during the year by:

Improving Educational Results:

We have ensured that resources are directed where they are most needed and most effective in meeting
educational requirements, for example by:

Targeting resources in line with the School Improvement Plan (SIP) priorities, including:

+ A clear focus on recruitment of quality teachers across all schools within the Trust and a focused recruitment
drive in order to do this.

» Recruitment of a number of additional TA's especially in the Primary setting in order to support our students
better.

« Implementing initiatives to ensure pupils learning is child led and initiated, underpinned by competencies and
is challenging enough to meet individual needs.

« Creating additional sets in all year groups in English maths and science.

» Homework clubs before and after school

* Providing small group work with an experienced teacher focused on overcoming gaps in learning

* Revision centres in all holidays to improve outcomes

» Intervention mentoring for students in maths

+ Phonics small classes for KS1 students

» Assessment and recording further enhanced to provide better data and systems including PIXL

« Literacy and EAL intervention groups to support learning

» High quality leaders recruited to support school improvement

* Year care team and achievement team leaders employed to maximise student outcomes

+ Reading and literacy programmes developed

« Appraisal system and leaders trained to target student outcomes

Financial Governance and Oversight:

Our governance arrangements include regular monitoring by the Board of Directors and its committees,
including the Audit Committee. They receive regular financial reports and ask relevant questions as evidenced
in the minutes. There is an experienced finance specialist on the Board of Directors.

The work of these committees is further informed by regular Internal Audit reports undertaken by HCSS termly,
an annual external audit undertaken by Streets Audit LLP.
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Better Purchasing:

Examples of steps taken to ensure value for money when purchasing include:

+ Exploring alternative purchasing options both online and direct through suppliers to find the best value.

» Working across the Trust and combining individual contracts into Trust contracts in order to drive down cost
and/or negotiate favourable rates e.g. cleaning, catering and HR and payroll contracts

* Revising and improving the tender process for significant purchases and/or contracts alongside internal and
external audit action points

+ The Director of Finance and Operations has been influential in driving down costs through better procurement
and negotiation throughout 2014/15; including catering, uniform, insurance costs and cleaning.

- Finance Manual reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that policy and procedure guides the Trust in securing
Best Value for Money.

Better Income Generation:
Examples of steps to maximise income include:

* Review of the lettings policy and a restructure in pricing and broader agreement of terms,
entering into longer term agreements with hirers to secure income where appropriate

» Hosting trainee teachers, including School Direct, Teach First and PGCE placements.

* Approval for Teaching School status

Reviewing Controls and Managing Risks:

The CEO, Audit Committee, Directors Board and the Director of Finance and Operations have reviewed regular
budget reports, including future recommendations.

This has ensured that spending is within budget and forward plans are agreed and implemented when there has
been any variance.

Actions taken to manage risk include the purchase of an appropriate level of insurance cover, following
consultation with the school’s broker. Professional advice (for example from the HR and legal service providers)
has also been sought when needed.

Future Objectives:

We recognise the need to continue developing out Trust contracts rather than individual school contracts in
order to benefit from economies of scale in procuring products and services, developing staff and sharing
knowledge, skill and expertise.

Page 28



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Loxford School Trust Limited for the year
1 September 2014 to 31 August 2015 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements.

The Board of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Loxford Academy Trust is exposed together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.

The Board of Directors is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year beginning 1st September 2014 and up
to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Directors.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2015 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK
The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and

administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

o comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees;
. regular reviews by the business and finance committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

The board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
HCSS Education as internal auditor.

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

o Final review of the first annual cycle of Loxford to include reporting, other income, insurance, yearend
procedures, financial & accounting records and systems & data securiy

. First visit to include The Warren and Aldborough schools

. Review of roles & responsibilities, financial procedures, register of pecuniary interests, whistle blowing

policy, staff structure review, new governors induction pack, self-evaluation of financial competencies
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On a termly basis, the internal auditor reports to the board of Trustees on the operation of the systems of
control and on the discharge of the board of Trustees' financial responsibilities.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditors;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance and General Purpose's Committee and the Audit Committee and a plan to address
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on UK and signed on its behalf, by:

" Dedrl.s .

Mr D A Low Mrs A Johnson
Vice Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Loxford School Trust Limited | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust
board of Trustees and the Education Funding Agency of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance
with EFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the Trust and the
Secretary of State. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies
Financial Handbook (2014).

I confirm that | and the Trust board of Trustees are able to identify any material, irregular or improper use of
funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's
funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook (2014).

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered

to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
Trustees and EFA.

Mrs A Johnson
Accounting Officer

Date: &&/l Q// ;LO ‘S
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

The Trustees (who act as governors of Loxford School Trust Limited and are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' report (including the
Strategic report) and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the
Education Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; )

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from EFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on’ ALK and signed on its behalf by:

Mr D A Low
Vice Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Loxford School Trust Limited for the year ended 31 August 2015

which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Cash flow statement and the related
" notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015 issued by the Education Funding Agency.

This report is made solely to the charitable Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES AND AUDITORS

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the charitable Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Trust's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Trustees; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Trustees' report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2015 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Academies

Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015 issued by the Education Funding Agency.
OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' report, incorporating the Strategic report, for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
L we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Robert Anderson (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
Streets Audit LLP
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor

Charter House
62-64 Hills Road
Cambridge

CB2 1LA

Date: 22 ~\2Z\$
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO LOXFORD
SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 14 October 2013 and further to the requirements
of the Education Funding Agency (EFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Loxford School Trust Limited during the year 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2015 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Loxford School Trust Limited and EFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Loxford School Trust Limited and
EFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Loxford School Trust Limited and EFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER
AND THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Loxford School Trust Limited's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 November 2013, and the Academies Financial
Handbook extant from 1 September 2014, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2015 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015 issued by
EFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance éngagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- A review of the academy's systems and controls and confirmation of the operation and effectiveness
during the year;

- A review of expenditure to confirm the appropriateness and value of money; and

- A review of connected party arrangements, transactions and balances.
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CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2015 have not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Robert Anderson
Streets Audit LLP
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor

Charter House
62-64 Hills Road
Cambridge

CB2 1LA

Date: 22 —\2-\{
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
(incorporating income and expenditure account and statement of total recognised gains and losses)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

INCOMING RESOURCES

Incoming resources from
generated funds:
Assets on conversion
Activities for generating funds
Incoming resources from
charitable activities

TOTAL INCOMING
RESOURCES

RESOURCES EXPENDED

Charitable activities
Governance costs

TOTAL RESOURCES
EXPENDED

NET INCOMING / (OUTGOING)
RESOURCES BEFORE
TRANSFERS

Note

S W

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
£ £ £ £ £
(200,000) (2,815,000) 42,160,000 39,145,000 52,358,352
111,787 - - 111,787 10,748
493,319 27,495,096 154,905 28,143,320 10,727,697
405,106 24,680,096 42,314,905 67,400,107 63,096,797
- 26,970,404 129,845 27,100,249 10, 01'5,312
- 51,361 - 51,361 110,574
- 27,021,765 129,845 27,151,610 10,125,886
405,106 (2,341,669) 42,185,060 40,248,497 52,970,911
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
Note £ £ £ £ £
Transfers between Funds 15 (405,106) (713,626) 1,118,732 - -
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR - (3,055,295) 43,303,792 40,248,497 52,970,911
Actuarial gains and losses on
defined benefit pension
schemes - 33,000 - 33,000 (444,000)
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR - (3,022,295) 43,303,792 40,281,497 52,526,911
Total funds at 1 September
2014 1,091,436 (836,592) 52,272,067 52,526,911 -
TOTAL FUNDS AT 3t
AUGUST 2015 1,091,436  (3,858,887) 95,575,859 92,808,408 52,526,911

All activities relate to continuing operations.

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 41 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2015

2015 2014
Note £ £ £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 12 95,310,109 52,048,838
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 13 1,765,216 1,256,857
Cash at bank and in hand 2,747,056 1,341,062
4,512,272 2,597,919
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year : 14 (2,382,973) (683,846)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,129,299 1,914,073

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 97,439,408 53,962,911

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 22 (4,631,000) (1,436,000)
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION

SCHEME LIABILITY 92,808,408 52,526,911
FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
Restricted funds:

Restricted funds 15 772,113 599,408

Restricted fixed asset funds 15 95,575,859 52,272,067

Restricted funds excluding pension liability 96,347,972 52,871,475

Pension reserve (4,631,000) (1,436,000)

Total restricted funds 91,716,972 51,435,475
Unrestricted funds 15 1,091,436 1,091,436
TOTAL FUNDS 92,808,408 52,526,911
The financial statements were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on

LULATLA and are signed on their behalf, by:
Ded ol o
MrDALow

Vice Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 41 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
Note £ £
Net cash flow from operating activities 17 2,612,342 26,397
Capital expenditure and financial investment 18 (1,006,348) (103,607)
Cash transferred to/(by) academy trust on conversion 2 (200,000) 1,418,272
INCREASE IN CASH IN THE YEAR 1,405,994 1,341,062
RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
£ £
Increase in cash in the year 1,405,994 1,341,062
MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS IN THE YEAR 1,405,994 1,341,062

Net funds at 1 September 2014 1,341,062 -
NET FUNDS AT 31 AUGUST 2015 2,747,056 1,341,062

The notes on pages 41 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the
exception of investments which are included at market value. The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), 'Accounting and
Reporting by Charities' published in March 2005, the Academies Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015
issued by EFA, applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act 2006.

Company status

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee. The members of the company are the Trustees
named on page 1. In the event of the Trust being wound up, the liability in respect of the guarantee
is limited to £10 per member of the Trust.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meetmg any of
the charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the
Education Funding Agency.

Incoming resources

All incoming resources are included in the Statement of financial activities when the Trust has
entitlement to the funds, certainty of receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitiement occurs
before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the year for which it is receivable and any unspent
amount is reflected as a balance in the restricted general fund.

Capital grants are recognised when receivable and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the
restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount
can be reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period in which it is receivable and
to the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

Page 41



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.5

1.6

1.7

Resources expended

Expenditure is recognised in the period in which a liability is incurred and has been classified under
headings that aggregate all costs related to that category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed
to particular headings they have been allocated on a basis consistent with the use of resources, with
central staff costs allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the
portion of the asset's use. Other support costs are allocated based on the spread of staff costs.

Costs of generating funds are costs incurred in attracting voluntary income, and those incurred in
trading activities that raise funds.

Charitable activities are costs incurred in the Trust's educational operations.

Governance costs include the costs attributable to the Trust's compliance with constitutional and
statutory requirements, including audit, strategic management and Trustees' meetings and
reimbursed expenses.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period
of one year from the date of approval of the financial statements.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
All assets costing more than £5,000 are capitalised.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and are carried forward in the Balance sheet.
Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of
financial activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of the related asset on a
basis consistent with the Trust's depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not
charged until they are brought into use.

Page 42



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Dépreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their
expected useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold property - 0%

Long-term leasehold property - 0%

Structures (within Leasehold - 10% straight line
property)

Motor vehicles - 10% straight line

Fixtures and fittings - 20% straight line

Computer equipment - 33% straight line

Freehold and long leasehold buildings are not depreciated on the grounds of immateriality.
Buildings are subject to regular maintenance and repair such that in the governors opinion the
residual value is not materially different from the value in the financial statements and have a long
economic life. The governors consider the need for impairment at each period end.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

Taxation

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.10 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes
and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quinquennial valuations using a prospective
benefit method. As stated in note 22, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the Trust is unable to
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and
reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme and the
contributions recognised as they are paid each year.
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a
rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs
and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs. Past
service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of financial activities if the benefits have
vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the period until
vesting occurs. The expected return on assets and the interest cost are shown as a net finance
amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to interest. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in other gains and losses.

CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST

On 1 September 2014, The Warren School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Loxford School Trust Limited
from Barking and Dagenham London Borough Council for £NIL consideration.

On 1 April 2015, The Tabor Academy transferred to the Trust from an existing trust for £NIL
consideration.

The transfers have been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet under the appropriate
headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as net incoming resources in the Statement of
financial activities as voluntary income.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Statement of financial activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Leasehold land and buildings - - 42,160,000 42,160,000
Budget deficit on LA funds (200,000) - - (200,000)
LGPS pension deficit - (2,815,000) - (2,815,000)

Net assets/(liabilities) (200,000) (2,815,000) 42,160,000 39,145,000
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CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST (continued)

Leasehold land and buildings is analysed between schools as follows:

The Warren School £21,145,000
Tabor Academy £21,015,000

The £200,000 deficit on LA funds relates to The Warren School and the amount was agreed and paid to
the local authority.

The above net assets include £59,044 that were transferred as cash in relation to the Tabor Academy but
this was matched by creditors outstanding at the time of conversion and not reflected in the transfer
payment. These costs have been adjusted against the surplus on conversion to show nil net funds
transferred.

The premises of The Warren School is under the ownership of Barking and Dagenham London Borough
Council and the premises of Tabor Academy is under the ownership of Essex County Council. They are
used by the academies under the terms of a 125 year lease which transfers the beneficial ownership to
the Trust.

VOLUNTARY INCOME

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2015 2015 2015 2014

£ £ £ £

Assets on conversion (200,000) 39,345,000 39,145,000 52,358,352

Voluntary income (200,000) 39,345,000 39,145,000 52,358,352
ACTIVITIES FOR GENERATING FUNDS

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2015 ) 2015 2015 2014

£ £ £ £

Hire of facilities 111,787 - 111,787 10,748
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FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2015 2015 2015 2014
£ £ £ £
DfE/EFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 22,487,855 22,487,855 9,206,598
Other EFA Grants - 3,908,720 3,908,720 822,759
Capital grants - 154,905 154,905 46,155
- 26,551,480 26,551,480 10,075,512
Other government grants
Local authority grants - 1,098,521 1,098,521 513,683
- 1,098,521 1,098,521 513,683
Other funding
Other income 493,319 - 493,319 138,502
493,319 - 493,319 138,502
493,319 27,650,001 28,143,320 10,727,697
RESOURCES EXPENDED
Staff costs Non Pay Expenditure Total Total
Premises Other costs
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
£ £ £ £ £
Direct costs 18,414,923 - 3,401,213 21,816,136 8,259,504
Support costs 2,859,756 2,291,633 132,724 5,284,113 1,755,808
Charitable activities 21,274,679 2,291,633 3,533,937 27,100,249 10,015,312
Governance - - 51,361 51,361 110,574
21,274,679 2,291,633

3,585,298

27,151,610

10,125,886
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CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Total Total
funds funds
2015 2014
£ £
DIRECT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Wages and salaries 14,301,273 6,018,399
National insurance 1,154,265 459,064
Pension cost 1,977,566 781,117
Educational supplies 953,970 410,055
Examination fees 319,810 134,329
Staff development 448,229 42,831
Technology costs 478,604 139,217
Travel and subsistence 166,252 68,630
Other costs 2,016,167 202,986
21,816,136 8,256,628

SUPPORT COSTS - EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
Wages and salaries 2,275,824 776,107
National insurance 134,859 64,591
Pension cost 400,538 100,652
Depreciation 17,461 7,004
Pension finance cost 112,000 21,000
Technology costs - 133
Maintenance of premises and equipment 951,271 190,068
Cleaning 410,717 182,204
Rent and rates 264,316 126,655
Energy 440,910 164,066
Insurance 197,539 88,385
Security 29,649 13,679
Other costs 49,029 24,140
5,284,113 1,758,684

27,100,249

10,015,312
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GOVERNANCE COSTS
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2015 2015 2015 2014
£ £ £ £
Internal audit costs . - 2,500 2,500 -
Auditors' remuneration - 15,350 15,350 14,250
Legal and professional fees - 33,511 33,511 96,324
- 51,361 51,361 110,574
STAFF
a. Staff costs
Staff costs were as follows:
Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
£ £
Wages and salaries 16,577,097 6,794,506
Social security costs 1,289,124 523,655
Other pension costs (Note 22) 2,378,104 881,769
20,244,325 8,199,930
Supply teacher costs 1,030,354 101,103
21,274,679 8,301,033

b. Staff severance payments

Included in wages and salaries are non-statutory / non-contractual settlement payments totalling £27,322.

Individually the payments were £12,000, £7,722 and £7,600.
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10.

STAFF (continued)

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year expressed as full time equivalents

was as follows:

. Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
No. No.
Teachers 290 195
Administration and support 146 86
436 281
d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose emoluments fell within the following bands was:
Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 10 3
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 . 3 3
in the band £80,001 - £90,000 3 5
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 2 1
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 1 1
In the band £170,001 - £180,000 1 0
In the band £200,001 - £205,000 1 0

The above employees participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme.

CENTRAL SERVICES

There were no central services provided by the Trust to it's academies during the year. However, where
there are shared staff, costs are apportioned between academies on a reasonable time basis.
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11.

12.

TRUSTEES® REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

During the year retirement benefits were accruing to 1 Trustee (2014 - 1) in respect of defined benefit

pension schemes.

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of
employment, and not in respect of their role as Trustees, The value of Trustees' remuneration and other

benefits was as follows:

Mrs A Johnson - remuneration

Mrs A Johnson - Employers pension contributions

31 August

200,000-205,000

2015
£

25,000-30,000

During the year, no Trustees received any reimbursement of expenses (2014 - £NIL).

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost

At 1 September 2014
Additions
Assets on conversion

At 31 August 2015

Depreciation

At 1 September 2014
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2015

Net book value
At 31 August 2015

At 31 August 2014

Period ended

31 August
2014
£

135,000-140,000

L.ong-term

Freehold leasehold Motor Fixtures
property property vehicles and fittings Total
£ £ £ £ £
2,097,701 49,882,817 38,379 36,945 52,055,842
- 1,031,852 - 86,880 1,118,732
- 42,160,000 - - 42,160,000
2,097,701 93,074,669 38,379 123,825 95,334,574
- 4,124 2,880 - 7,004
- 5,500 3,838 8,123 17,461
- 9,624 6,718 8,123 24,465
2,097,701 93,065,045 31,661 115,702 95,310,109
2,097,701 49,878,693 35,499 36,945 52,048,838
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12,

13.

14.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Freehold property and long-term leasehold property have been valued in line with insurance and third
party valuations which the Trustees consider to be an appropriate basis for valuation.

Long-term leasehold property consists of the following:

Properties on conversion at valuation
Structures

Asset under construction - Leisure Centre

DEBTORS

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

CREDITORS:
Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2014
Resources deferred during the period
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2015

£91,875,000
£45,376
£1,144,669

2015 2014
£ £
15,286 22,586
593,830 197,024
5,379 5,280
1,150,721 1,031,967
1,765,216 1,256,857
2015 2014
£ £
854,420 141,944
450,086 235,243
50,116 23,475
1,028,351 283,184
2,382,973 683,846
£
169,163
376,553
(169,163)
376,553

At the year end, the Trust had received funding in advance for free school meals and in relation to CIF

funding not yet spent.
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15.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Brought Incoming Resources  Transfers Gains/ Carried
Forward resources Expended in/out (Losses) Forward
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Fund 1,091,436 405,106 - (405,106) - 1,091,436
Restricted funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 599,408 22,487,855 (21,601,524) (713,626) - 772,113
Other EFA Grants - 3,908,720 (3,908,720) - - -
Other Government :
Grants - 1,098,521  (1,098,521) - - -
Pension Reserve (1,436,000) (2,815,000) (413,000) - 33,000 (4,631,000)
(836,592) 24,680,096 (27,021,765) (713,626) 33,000 (3,858,887)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Assets transferred
on conversion 51,906,080 42,160,000 (9,338) - - 94,056,742
Assets acquired
with funding 142,758 - (8,123) 1,327,314 - 1,461,949
EFA Capital Grants 46,155 154,905 (112,384) (40,366) - 48,310
Capital Grants on
conversion 177,074 - - (168,216) - 8,858
52,272,067 42,314,905 (129,845) 1,118,732 - 95,575,859
Total restricted
funds 51,435,475 66,995,001 (27,151,610) 405,106 33,000 91,716,972
Total of funds 52,526,911 67,400,107 (27,151,610) - 33,000 92,808,408

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds:

Surplus on conversion - resources received on conversion to the Trust which may be used towards
meeting any of the objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted funds:

General Annual Grant (GAG) - represents a number of different funding streams from the EFA, all of
which are to be used to cover the running costs of the Trust.

Other EFA Grants - represents grants from the EFA including Pupil Premium, all of which are for specific

purposes.

Page 52



LOXFORD SCHOOL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

15.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Other Government Grants - represents grants from other Government entities received for specific
purposes.

Pension Reserve - represents the current deficit balance on the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS). -

Restricted fixed asset funds:

Assets transferred on conversion - represents the net book value of fixed assets transferred to the Trust
on conversion.

Assets acquired with funding - represents the net book value of fixed assets acquired from capital funding
transferred to the Trust on conversion.

EFA Capital Grants / Capital Grants on conversion - represent unspent capital grants as at the year end.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2015.

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2015 were allocated as follows:

Total

£

Loxford School of Science and Technology 1,582,779
Aldborough Primary School 233,718
The Warren School 27,982
Tabor Academy 19,070
Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve 1,863,549
Restricted fixed asset fund 95,575,859
Pension reserve (4,631,000)
Total 92,808,408
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16. .

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding
staff costs  staff costs supplies dep'n Total
£ £ £ £ £
Loxford School of Science and
Technology 10,000,370 1,415,797 642,390 2,269,450 14,328,007
Aldborough Primary School 915,486 282,475 46,761 376,370 1,621,092
The Warren School 5,914,241 711,494 213,542 1,713,458 8,552,735
Tabor Academy 1,584,826 449,990 51,277 546,222 2,632,315
18,414,923 2,859,756 953,970 4,905,500 27,134,149
SUMMARY OF FUNDS
Brought Incoming Resources  Transfers Gains/ Carried
Forward resources Expended in/out (Losses) Forward
£ £ £ £ £ £
General funds 1,091,436 405,106 - (405,106) - 1,091,436
Restricted funds (836,592) 24,680,096 (27,021,765) (713,626) 33,000 (3,858,887)
Restricted fixed
asset funds 52,272,067 42,314,905 (129,845) 1,118,732 - 95,575,859
52,526,911 67,400,107 (27,151,610) - 33,000 92,808,408
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUND
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2015 2015 2015 2015 2014
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 95,310,109 95,310,109 52,048,838
Current assets 1,091,436 3,155,086 265,750 4,512,272 2,597,919
Creditors due within one year - (2,382,973) - (2,382,973) (683,846)
Provisions for liabilities and
charges - (4,631,000) - (4,631,000) (1,436,000)
1,091,436  (3,858,887) 95,575,859 92,808,408 52,526,911
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17.

18.

19.

20.

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net incoming resources before revaluations

Assets on conversion

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from EFA
Increase in debtors
Increase in creditors
FRS 17 adjustments

Net cash inflow from operations

ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS FOR HEADINGS NETTED IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from EFA

Net cash outflow capital expenditure

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

Cash at bank and in hand:

Net funds

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Period ended

31 August 31 August

2015 2014

£ £

40,248,497 52,970,911
(39,145,000) (52,358,352)

17,461 7,004
(112,384) (46,155)
(508,359) (1,256,857)

1,699,127 683,846

413,000 26,000

2,612,342 26,397

Period ended

31 August 31 August

2015 2014

£ £
(1,118,732) (149,762)

112,384 46,155
(1,006,348) (103,607)
Other
1 non-cash

September Cash flow changes 31 August
2014 2015
£ £ £ £
1,341,062 1,405,994 - 2,747,056

1,341,062

1,405,994 -

2,747,056

In the event of the constituent academies of the Loxford School Trust Limited ceasing to operate as
academies, provisions are included in the funding agreements relating to the clawback of assets and

monies paid to the constituent academies.
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21.

22.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2015 the Trust had capital commitments as follows:

2015 2014
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 270,000 1,000,000

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Redbridge Council (Loxford and
Aldborough), London Borough of Barking and Dagenham (Warren) and Essex Council Council (Tabor).
Both are defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 2013.

There were no oufstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial
year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
Reguiations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January
2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract,
although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis — these
contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Not less than every four years the Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a
formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and
Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the
level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value
of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was
carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and
Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the Department for
Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge (currently 14.1%);

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

notional past service deficit of £14,900 million
. an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

. the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate
of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%

During the year the employer contribution rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an
employer rate of 16.4% from September 2015, which will be payable during the implementation period
until the next valuation as at March 2016, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be
reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2019.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,489,445.
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.
Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard (FRS 17) Retirement Benefits, the TPS is a

multi-employer pension scheme. The Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were
a defined contribution scheme. The Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2015 was £231,000, of which employer's
contributions totalled £175,000 and employees' contributions totalled £56,000. The agreed contribution
rates for future years are 15.6% for employers and a maximum of 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

The Trust's share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme and the éxpected rates of return were:

Expected Expected

return at Fair value at return at Fair value at
31 August 31 August 37 August 31 August
2015 2015 2014 2014
, % £ % £
Equities 3.80 2,473,000 6.30 1,036,000
Bonds 3.80 1,088,000 3.10 536,000
Property 3.80 398,000 4.50 160,000
Cash 3.80 82,000 3.30 54,000

Alternative assets - 47,000 - -
Total market value of assets 4,088,000 1,786,000
Present value of scheme liabilities 8,719,000 (3,222,000)
Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme 12,807,000 (1,436,000)
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Balance sheet are as follows:

Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
£ £
Present value of funded obligations (8,719,000) (3,222,000)
Fair value of scheme assets 4,088,000 1,786,000
Net liability (4,631,000) (1,436,000)
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:
Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
£ £
Current service cost (975,000) (180,000)
Interest on obligation (300,000) (81,000)
Expected return on scheme assets 188,000 60,000
Total (1,087,000) (201,000)
Actual return on scheme assets 80,000 127,000
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 3,222,000 -
Current service cost 975,000 180,000
Interest cost 300,000 81,000
Contributions by scheme participants 226,000 56,000
Actuarial losses (141,000) 511,000
Benefits paid (14,000) -
Transfer on conversion 4,151,000 2,394,000
Closing defined benefit obligation 8,719,000 3,222,000
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Movements in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets:

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Expected return on assets

Actuarial gains

Contributions by employer
Contributions by employees

Benefits paid

Transfer on conversion

Period ended
31 August 31 August
2015 2014
£ £
1,786,000 -
188,000 60,000
(108,000) 67,000
674,000 175,000
226,000 56,000
(14,000) -
1,336,000 1,428,000
4,088,000 1,786,000

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Statement of total recognised

gains and losses was £411,000 (2014 - £444,000).

The Trust expects to contribute £673,000 to its Defined benefit pension scheme in 2016.

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash
Property

2015

61.00 %
27.00 %
10.00 %
2.00 %
1.00 %

2014
58.00 %
30.00 %

9.00 %
3.00 %
- %

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Expected return on scheme assets at 31 August
Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation

2015

3.85 %
4.18 %
3.95 %
2.70 %

2014

3.70 %
510 %
3.50 %
2.70 %

The above percentages are the average for the different schemes in which the Trust is a member.
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23.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2015 2014
Retiring today
Males 222 22.0
Females 24.4 24.1
Retiring in 20 years
Males 24.5 24.3
Females 26.9 26.7

The above figures are the average for the different schemes in which the Trust is a member.
Amounts for the current and previous period are as follows:

Defined benefit pension schemes

2015 2014

£ £

Defined benefit obligation (8,719,000) (3,222,000)
Scheme assets 4,088,000 1,786,000
Deficit (4,631,000) (1,436,000)
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities 141,000 (511,000)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets (108,000) 67,000

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2015 the Trust had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating Ieyases for
equipment as follows:

2015 2014
£ £

Expiry date:
Between 2 and 5 years 3,484 6,452
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24,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the Trust's operations and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which a Trustee has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's
length and in accordance with the Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

The Warren School is part of a consortium sixth form arrangement with two other schools which is led by
Robert Clack School of Science. During the year the amount paid to Robert Clack School of Science for
provision of the sixth form services was £60,861.
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